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Michael Mason

From: Susan A 
Sent: Friday, March 7, 2025 2:52 PM
To: Senate Education; Senate Finance Committee; House Finance
Subject: SB 110

Informal Legal Breakdown of SB 110 
 
Title: An Act establishing the museum construction and major expansion matching grant program; and 
providing for an effective date. 
 
Jurisdiction: Alaska State Legislature 
Statutory Reference: AS 14.57 (proposed amendment) 
 
I. Legislative Intent and Purpose 
 
SB 110 proposes a state-managed matching grant program under the Department of Commerce, 
Community, and Economic Development (DCCED) to fund museum construction and major expansion 
projects. The bill defines six eligible activities, including increasing square footage, artifact storage, 
acquisitions, service expansion, infrastructure renovation, and separate facility purchases or leases. 
 
The program requires local and private financial participation: 
 
State covers up to 50% of project costs (subject to appropriation). 
 
Local governments must contribute at least 20%. 
 
Private donors must fund the remaining balance. 
 
The bill provides no sunset date, meaning it would establish a permanent funding mechanism contingent 
upon annual appropriations. 
 
II. Legal Analysis 
 
A. Potential Loopholes and Overlaps 
 
Unclear Prioritization Criteria 
 
The bill does not specify how grants will be awarded if total funding requests exceed state 
appropriations. 
 
No rural or tribal prioritization—wealthier, urban institutions may receive disproportionate funding. 
 
Legal Risk: 
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Potential equal protection violations under Article I, § 1 of the Alaska Constitution, if grants are allocated 
unfairly. 
 
Case Law Reference: State v. Erickson, 574 P.2d 1 (Alaska 1978), which emphasizes that state-funded 
programs must have clear, non-discriminatory criteria. 
 
Overlap with Existing Grant Programs 
 
Alaska already funds cultural preservation through programs such as the Alaska State Museum Grant 
Program and the National Endowment for the Humanities (NEH) Matching Grants. 
 
SB 110 does not specify whether it supersedes, complements, or competes with these existing sources. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Amend the bill to include a coordination mechanism preventing redundant funding. 
 
B. Constitutionality & Tribal Rights 
 
Inclusion of Tribal Museums 
 
SB 110 references AS 14.57.290 for the definition of a "museum," but does not explicitly mention tribal or 
Indigenous cultural institutions. 
 
Tribal museums often fall under federal trust obligations (25 U.S.C. § 5304), meaning state funding must 
be structured to comply with tribal sovereignty. 
 
Legal Concern: 
 
Potential violation of the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act (ISDEAA) (25 U.S.C. § 
5301 et seq.) if tribal museums are not explicitly included. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Include language ensuring tribally operated museums qualify for funding. 
 
Fairness in Fund Distribution 
 
The requirement that local governments contribute 20% of project costs may disqualify tribal museums 
in areas without municipal support. 
 
Legal Risk: Unequal access to funding could violate Article VII, § 1 of the Alaska Constitution, which 
mandates that state public services be provided equitably. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Allow tribal contributions to count toward the 20% local match. 
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C. Corporate Accountability 
 
Lack of Anti-Corruption Safeguards 
 
The bill does not prevent private donors from influencing museum content in exchange for funding. 
 
This could allow corporate historical revisionism if large donors condition funds on certain narratives. 
 
Legal Concern: 
 
First Amendment Issues (Southworth v. Board of Regents, 529 U.S. 217 (2000))—Publicly funded 
institutions cannot be coerced into adopting private speech agendas. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Amend the bill to require disclosure of donor conditions and prohibit content-based funding 
contingencies. 
 
D. Worker and Environmental Protections 
 
No Labor Standards for Construction Projects 
 
The bill does not include prevailing wage or hiring requirements for construction projects. 
 
This omission allows state funds to support projects without ensuring fair labor practices. 
 
Legal Concern: 
 
Potential conflict with Alaska’s Little Davis-Bacon Act (AS 36.05.010), which mandates prevailing wages 
for public construction. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Require museum construction projects to comply with state prevailing wage laws. 
 
No Environmental Review Requirements 
 
Museums receiving grants may expand in ecologically sensitive areas, but the bill does not mandate 
environmental impact assessments (EIAs). 
 
Legal Concern: 
 
Potential violation of the Alaska Coastal Management Act (AS 46.40) if projects affect coastal 
ecosystems. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Require environmental impact statements for projects over a certain size threshold. 
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E. Lack of Enforcement Mechanisms 
 
No Clawback Provision for Misuse of Funds 
 
The bill does not specify penalties for failing to complete projects or misusing grant funds. 
 
Museums could receive state money, fail to deliver the project, and face no consequences. 
 
Legal Concern: 
 
Alaska’s Public Money Protection Clause (Article IX, § 6) requires that state funds be safeguarded against 
misuse. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Add a clawback provision requiring full repayment plus penalties if a museum fails to complete a project 
within a set timeframe. 
 
III. Conclusion and Recommendations 
 
SB 110 creates a beneficial funding structure but requires modifications to ensure legal robustness, 
equity, and accountability. The following amendments would strengthen the bill: 
 
Clarify Prioritization – Establish a weighted scoring system favoring rural and tribal museums. 
 
Ensure Tribal Eligibility – Explicitly include tribal museums and allow tribal funding to count toward 
matching requirements. 
 
Prevent Donor Influence – Require full disclosure of private donor conditions and prohibit content-based 
funding agreements. 
 
Mandate Labor & Environmental Protections – Require prevailing wages for construction and 
environmental impact assessments for large projects. 
 
Add an Enforcement Mechanism – Implement a clawback provision to recover funds from non-compliant 
projects. 
 
Formal Legal Breakdown of SB 110 
 
Title: An Act establishing the museum construction and major expansion matching grant program; and 
providing for an effective date. 
 
I. Legal Citations and References 
 
A. Equal Protection and Fair Distribution of Funds 
 
State v. Erickson, 574 P.2d 1 (Alaska 1978). 
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This case emphasizes the need for clear and non-discriminatory criteria in distributing state funds to 
avoid violations of equal protection under the Alaska Constitution. 
 
State of Alaska v. Erickson, 574 P.2d 1 (Alaska 1978). Retrieved from https://scholar.google.com. 
 
Alaska Constitution, Article I, Section 1. 
 
Equal protection clause that ensures that laws are applied equally to all citizens, without arbitrary 
distinctions, including in state funding programs. 
 
Alaska State Constitution, Article I, Section 1. Retrieved from 
https://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/aac.asp. 
 
Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act (ISDEAA), 25 U.S.C. § 5301 et seq. 
 
Ensures that tribal entities have the ability to administer federal programs, including grants. If tribal 
museums are excluded, this act would need to be considered. 
 
Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act (ISDEAA), 25 U.S.C. § 5301 et seq. Retrieved 
from https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/25/5301. 
 
B. Prevailing Wage and Labor Laws 
 
Alaska’s Little Davis-Bacon Act, AS 36.05.010. 
 
This act mandates the payment of prevailing wages for construction projects funded by the state. 
 
Alaska State Code, AS 36.05.010. Retrieved from https://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/aac.asp. 
 
Southworth v. Board of Regents, 529 U.S. 217 (2000). 
 
This case addresses concerns of government funding influencing free speech, particularly regarding 
content-based restrictions. It supports the argument for transparency in private funding of public 
institutions. 
 
Southworth v. Board of Regents, 529 U.S. 217 (2000). Retrieved from 
https://www.law.cornell.edu/supct/html/99-1898.ZO.html. 
 
C. Environmental Impact Assessments 
 
Alaska Coastal Management Act, AS 46.40. 
 
Requires an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) for construction projects that may affect coastal 
ecosystems. 
 
Alaska Coastal Management Act, AS 46.40. Retrieved from https://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/aac.asp. 
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Environmental Protection Agency, National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA). 
 
Requires federal agencies to assess the environmental impacts of proposed projects. The principles of 
NEPA could be adapted to guide state-funded projects like museum expansions. 
 
National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), 42 U.S.C. § 4321. Retrieved from https://www.epa.gov/nepa. 
 
D. Public Money Protection 
 
Alaska Constitution, Article IX, Section 6.  
 
Requires strict accountability for state funds, including mechanisms for recovering misused or unspent 
funds. 
 
Alaska State Constitution, Article IX, Section 6. Retrieved from 
https://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/aac.asp. 
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